# CONSTITUTIONAL AMENDMENTS, DISAPPROVED

# CHAPTER 658

# SALARIES OF PUBLIC OFFICERS

Senate Concurrent Resolution No. 4042, chapter 702, 1979 Session Laws, proposed by the Forty-sixth Legislative Assembly of the State of North Dakota, providing for the amendment of section 84 of the Constitution of North Dakota, relating to the salaries of public officers.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 84 of the Constitution of the State of North Dakota is hereby amended and reenacted to read as follows:

Section 84. Salaries of public officers shall be as prescribed by law, but the salaries of any of the said officers shall not be inereased-or diminished during the period for which they shall have been elected, and all fees and profits arising from any of the said offices shall be govered-into deposited in the state treasury.

Disapproved September 2, 1980

53,495 to 65,289

NOTE: This was measure No. 1 on the primary election ballot.

# STATE MEDICAL CENTER MILL LEVY

House Concurrent Resolution No. 3011, chapter 704, 1979 Session Laws, proposed by the Forty-sixth Legislative Assembly of the State of North Dakota, providing for the repeal of article 60 of the amendments to the Constitution of North Dakota, relating to a 1-mill levy on all taxable property within the State of North Dakota for the North Dakota state medical center at the University of North Dakota.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. REPEAL. Article 60 of the amendments to the Constitution of the State of North Dakota is hereby repealed.

Disapproved September 2, 1980

55,785 to 63,002

NOTE: This was measure No. 3 on the primary election ballot.

# TAXATION OF PROPERTY

House Concurrent Resolution No. 3062, chapter 705, 1979 Session Laws, proposed by the Forty-sixth Legislative Assembly of the State of North Dakota, providing for the amendment of section 176 of the Constitution of North Dakota, relating to the taxation of property.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 176 of the Constitution of the State of North Dakota is hereby amended and reenacted to read as follows:

Section 176. Taxes shall be uniform upon the same class of property including franchises within the territorial limits of the authority levying the tax. The legislature legislative assembly may by law exempt any or all classes of personal property from taxation and within the meaning of this section, fixtures, buildings and improvements of every character, whatsoever, upon land shall be deemed personal property. The property of the United States, except as the Congress of the United States shall authorize taxation of it, and of the state, county and municipal corporations and property used exclusively for schools, religious, cemetery, charitable or other public purposes shall be exempt from taxation. Except as restricted-by-this-Article,-the-legislature The legislative assembly may provide for raising revenue and fixing the situs of all property for the purpose of taxation. Previded-that-all-taxes-and-exemptions in--force-when-this-amendment-is-adopted-shall-remain-in-force-until etherwise-previded-by-statute:

Disapproved September 2, 1980

51,178 to 60,830

NOTE: This was measure No. 4 on the primary election ballot.

# **EMOLUMENTS OF OFFICE**

Senate Concurrent Resolution No. 4061, chapter 707, 1979 Session Laws, proposed by the Forty-sixth Legislative Assembly of the State of North Dakota, providing for the repeal of section 39 of the Constitution of North Dakota, relating to the appointment or election of members of the Legislative Assembly to other offices, the emoluments of which have been increased during those legislators' terms of office.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. REPEAL. Section 39 of the Constitution of the State of North Dakota is hereby repealed.

Disapproved September 2, 1980

45,960 to 63,906

NOTE: This was measure No. 6 on the primary election ballot.

#### LEGISLATIVE COMPENSATION

House Concurrent Resolution No. 3002, chapter 709, 1979 Session Laws, proposed by the Forty-sixth Legislative Assembly of the State of North Dakota, providing for a new section of the Constitution of North Dakota, relating to legislative reimbursement, repealing section 45 of the Constitution of North Dakota, relating to legislative salaries and mileage, and providing for an effective date.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. A new section of the Constitution of the State of North Dakota is hereby created to read as follows:

Each member of the legislative assembly shall receive a salary and expense allowance as provided by law.

SECTION 3. REPEAL. Section 45 of the Constitution of the State of North Dakota is hereby repealed.

SECTION 3. EFFECTIVE DATE. If approved by the voters, this measure shall be effective December 1, 1982.

Disapproved November 4, 1980

128,341 to 132,768

NOTE: This was measure No. 2 on the general election ballot.

# LEGISLATIVE ARTICLE

House Concurrent Resolution No. 3001, chapter 710, 1979 Session Laws, proposed by the Forty-sixth Legislative Assembly of the State of North Dakota, creating a new article II of the Constitution of North Dakota, relating to the Legislative Assembly, repealing sections 26 through 44 and sections 46 through 70 of the present article II of the Constitution of North Dakota, relating to the Legislative Assembly, and providing for an effective date.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. A new article II of the Constitution of the State of North Dakota is hereby created to read as follows:

#### ARTICLE II LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY

- Section 1. The senate shall be composed of not less than thirty nor more than fifty-two members, and the house of representatives shall be composed of not less than sixty nor more than one hundred four members, which jointly are designated as the legislative assembly of the State of North Dakota.
- Section 2. Senators shall be elected for terms of four years, and representatives for terms of two years.
- Section 3. Each person elected to the legislative assembly must be, on the day of his election, a qualified elector in the district from which he is chosen and have been a resident of the state for one year next preceding his election.
- Section 4. While serving in the legislative assembly, no member may hold any full-time elective state or political subdivision office nor any full-time appointive state office established by this Constitution or designated by law. During the term for which he was elected, no legislator shall be appointed to any full-time office which has been created, or for which the

compensation has been increased, by the legislative assembly during that term.

Section 5. The legislative assembly shall fix the number of senators and representatives and divide the state into as many senatorial districts of compact and contiguous territory as there are senators. The districts as thus ascertained and determined after the 1980 federal decennial census shall continue until the adjournment of the first regular session after each federal decennial census, or until changed by law.

The legislative assembly shall guarantee, as nearly as practicable, that every person is equal to every other person in the state in the casting of ballots for legislative candidates. One senator and at least two representatives shall be apportioned to each senatorial district and be elected at large or from subdistricts thereof. The legislative assembly may combine two senatorial districts only when a single-member senatorial district includes a federal facility or federal installation, containing over three-fourths of the population of a single-member senatorial district, and may provide for the election of senators at large and representatives at large or from subdistricts thereof.

Section 6. The legislative assembly shall establish by law a procedure whereby one-half of the members of the senate, as nearly as practicable, are elected biennially.

Section 7. The terms of legislators shall begin on the first day of December following their election.

The legislative assembly shall meet at the seat of government in the month of December following the election of the members thereof for organizational and orientation purposes as provided by law and shall thereafter recess until twelve noon on the first Tuesday after the third day in January or at such other time as may be prescribed by law but not later than the eleventh day of January.

Each regular session of the legislative assembly shall not exceed eighty natural days during the biennium. The organizational meeting of the legislative assembly shall not be counted as part of such eighty natural days, nor shall days spent in session at the call of the governor or while engaged in impeachment proceedings, be counted. Days spent in regular session need not be consecutive, and the legislative assembly may authorize its committees to meet at any time during the biennium. As used in this section, a "natural day" means a period of twenty-four consecutive hours.

Neither house may recess or adjourn for more than three days without consent of the other.

Section 8. The house of representatives shall elect one of its members presiding officer at the beginning of each organizational session.

A majority of the members elected to each house shall constitute a quorum. A smaller number may adjourn from day to day and may compel attendance of absent members in a manner, and under a penalty, as may be provided by law.

Each house is the judge of the qualifications of its members, but election contests shall be subject exclusively to judicial review as provided by law. If two or more candidates for the same office receive an equal and highest number of votes, the secretary of state shall choose one of them by lot.

Each house shall determine its rules of procedure, and may punish its members or other persons for contempt or disorderly behavior in its presence. With the concurrence of two-thirds of its elected members, either house may expel a member.

Section 9. Each house shall keep a journal of its proceedings, and a recorded vote on any question shall be taken at the request of one-sixth of those present. No bill shall become law except by a recorded vote of a majority of the members elected to each house, and the lieutenant governor shall be considered a member-elect of the senate when he votes.

No law shall be enacted except by a bill passed by both houses, and no bill shall be so amended on its passage through either house as to change its general subject matter. No bill shall embrace more than one subject, which shall be expressed in its title; but a law violating this provision shall be invalidated only to the extent the subject is not so expressed.

Every bill shall be read on two separate natural days, and the readings may be by title only unless a reading at length is demanded by one-fifth of the members present.

No bill shall be amended, extended, or incorporated in any other bill by reference to its title only, except in the case of definitions and procedural provisions.

The presiding officer of each house shall sign all bills passed and resolutions adopted by the legislative assembly, and the fact of signing shall be entered at once on the journal.

Every law enacted by the legislative assembly shall take effect on July first after its filing with the secretary of state or ninety days after its filing, whichever comes later, or on a subsequent date if specified in the law unless, by a separate vote of two-thirds of the members elected to each house, the legislative assembly declares it an emergency measure and includes the declaration in the act. An emergency measure shall take effect upon its filing with the secretary of state or on a date specified in the measure. Every law enacted by a special session of the legislative assembly shall take effect on a date specified in the act.

The legislative assembly shall enact all laws necessary to carry into effect the provisions of this Constitution. Except as otherwise provided in this Constitution, no local or special laws shall be enacted, nor shall the legislative assembly indirectly enact special or local laws by the partial repeal of a general law, but laws repealing local or special laws may be enacted.

Section 10. All sessions of the legislative assembly, including the committee of the whole and meetings of legislative committees, shall be open and public.

Section 11. Members of the legislative assembly shall be immune from arrest during their attendance at the sessions, and in going to or returning from the same, except in cases of felony or breach of the peace. For words used in any speech or debate in legislative proceedings, they shall not be questioned in any other place.

Section 12. The legislative assembly may by law submit to the electors the question: "Shall a constitutional convention be called?" If the question has not been submitted once in any thirty-year period, the secretary of state shall place it on the ballot at the next general election. If a majority of votes cast thereon are affirmative, the legislative assembly shall provide for the election of delegates and the holding of the convention.

Section 13. The legislative assembly shall provide for the appointment of an auditor general. He shall audit the receipt, expenditure, and use of public funds, as provided by law, and shall be responsible to the legislative assembly in the performance of those duties.

SECTION 2. REPEAL. Sections 26 through 44 and sections 46 through 70 of the Constitution of the State of North Dakota are hereby repealed.

SECTION 3. EFFECTIVE DATE. If approved by the voters, this measure shall be effective December 1, 1982.

Disapproved November 4, 1980

111,250 to 137,849

NOTE: This was measure No. 3 on the general election ballot.

### EXECUTIVE ARTICLE

House Concurrent Resolution No. 3005, chapter 711, 1979 Session Laws, proposed by the Forty-sixth Legislative Assembly of the State of North Dakota, creating a new article III of the Constitution of North Dakota, relating to the executive branch of government, to the election, qualification, and compensation of executive officials, to executive branch organization, to the powers and duties of the governor, and to gubernatorial succession, repealing article III, consisting of sections 71 through 84, of the Constitution of North Dakota, relating to the executive branch of government, the election, qualification, and compensation of executive officials, the powers and duties of the governor, and gubernatorial succession, and providing for an effective date.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. Article III of the Constitution of the State of North Dakota is hereby created and enacted to read as follows:

Section 71. There shall be chosen by the qualified electors of the state at the times and places of choosing members of the legislative assembly, a secretary of state, auditor, treasurer, superintendent of public instruction, commissioner of insurance, an attorney general, a commissioner of agriculture, a commissioner of labor, a tax commissioner, and three public service commissioners.

The tax commissioner and the superintendent of public instruction shall be elected on a no-party ballot in a manner provided by law.

The powers and duties of the secretary of state, auditor, treasurer, superintendent of public instruction, commissioner of insurance, public service commissioners, attorney general, and commissioners of agriculture and labor shall be prescribed by law.

Section 72. The governor and lieutenant governor shall be elected on a joint ballot. Each vote cast for a candidate for governor shall be deemed cast also for the candidate for lieutenant

governor nominated jointly with the candidate for governor. The joint candidates having the highest number of votes shall be declared elected, but if two or more joint candidates shall have an equal and highest number of votes for governor and lieutenant governor, the legislative assembly at its next regular session shall in joint session choose one pair of such joint candidates for the offices. The returns of the election for governor and lieutenant governor shall be made in such manner as shall be prescribed by law.

The chief executives of the principal departments, other than those elected or those chosen in a manner otherwise provided for in this Constitution, shall be appointed by the governor and shall serve at the governor's pleasure. They shall be confirmed or rejected by the senate upon a recorded vote of a majority of the members elected. Any nomination not confirmed or rejected by the senate within twenty legislative days after being received shall be deemed confirmed.

The legislative assembly may periodically review the principal executive departments and may by law change and prescribe the manner of selecting those chief executive officers appointed by the governor under the provisions of this article.

Section 73. The elected state officials shall be chosen by the electors at a time designated by the legislative assembly, and shall serve until their successors are duly qualified. Terms of office shall be four years, except that terms of the public service commissioners shall be six years, so arranged that one of them is elected every two years.

If two or more candidates for any executive office receive an equal and highest number of votes, the legislative assembly in joint session shall choose one of them for the office.

Section 74. To be eligible to hold an elective office established by this article, a person must be a qualified elector of this state and must have been a resident of this state for the two years preceding election to office. The attorney general must be licensed to practice law in this state.

Section 75. The compensation of elected officials shall be as provided by law, but shall not be diminished during the term for which they were elected.

Section 76. Elected state officials and the chief executive officers of the principal departments shall hold office at the seat of government.

Section 77. The legislative assembly shall allocate the executive power among not more than fifteen principal state departments, which shall be organized along broad functional lines. The executive power of each department shall be vested in one person unless otherwise provided by this Constitution or by law. The legislative assembly shall prescribe the duties of and periodically

reorganize the executive departments, provided any reorganization or change in duties shall not affect the organization and powers granted to any boards of education named in this Constitution.

The governor may, for more effective administration, make changes in the statutory allocation of functions, powers, and duties among and within the executive departments, other than those headed by constitutionally designated elective officials. Any change shall be set forth in an executive order and submitted to both houses of the legislative assembly on the same day. The legislative assembly shall have thirty legislative days to disapprove the order. If not disapproved by a majority of the members elected to either house, the order shall have the force of law when filed with the secretary of state or on a later date specified therein.

Section 78. The chief executives of the principal state departments shall constitute the state planning council. The governor shall be chairman of the council and the lieutenant governor shall be a vice chairman. The council shall prepare a comprehensive state plan based on the comprehensive plan for each department.

Section 79. The governor is the chief executive of the state. The governor shall have the responsibility to see that the state's business is well administered, and that its laws are faithfully executed.

The governor shall present the comprehensive state plan, and the governor's own recommendations, to the legislative assembly at the beginning of each session and at any other time the governor chooses.

The governor may call special sessions of the legislative assembly.

The governor may require information in writing from all executive officials and officers concerning the performance of their respective duties.

The governor shall prescribe the duties of the lieutenant governor in addition to those prescribed in section 82 of this article.

The governor is commander-in-chief of the state's military forces, except when they are called into the service of the United States, and the governor may mobilize them to execute the laws and to maintain order.

The governor may grant reprieves, commutations, and pardons. The governor may delegate this power in a manner provided by law.

The governor may supervise business with the United States and other states.

Section 80. Every bill passed by the legislative assembly shall be presented to the governor for the governor's signature. If the governor signs the bill, it shall become law.

The governor may veto a bill passed by the legislative assembly. The governor may veto items in an appropriation bill. Portions of the bill not vetoed shall become law.

The governor shall return for reconsideration any vetoed item or bill, with a written statement of the governor's objections, to the house in which it originated. That house shall immediately enter the governor's objections upon its journal. If, by a recorded vote, two-thirds of the members elected to that house pass a vetoed item or bill, it, along with the statement of the governor's objections, shall immediately be delivered to the other house. If, by a recorded vote, two-thirds of the members elected to the other house also pass it, the vetoed item or bill shall become law.

While the legislative assembly is in session, a bill shall become law if the governor neither signs nor vetoes it within three days, Saturdays and Sundays excepted, after its delivery to the governor. If the legislative assembly is not in session, a bill shall become law if the governor neither signs nor vetoes it within fifteen days, Saturdays and Sundays excepted, after its delivery to the governor.

Section 81. The governor may fill a vacancy in any office by appointment if no other method is provided by this Constitution or by law. If, while the senate is recessed or adjourned, a vacancy occurs in any office which is filled by appointment with senate confirmation, the governor shall make a temporary appointment to the office. When the senate reconvenes the governor shall make a nomination to fill the office. Except on request of the senate, no nominee rejected by the senate shall again be nominated for that office at the same session, nor shall the nominee be appointed to that office during a recess or adjournment of the senate.

Section 82. The lieutenant governor shall serve as president of the senate, and may, if the senate is equally divided on a question, vote on both procedural and substantive matters. If, during a vacancy in the office of governor, the lieutenant governor is unable to serve because of death, impeachment, resignation, failure to qualify, removal from office, or disability, the secretary of state shall act as governor until the vacancy shall be filled or the disability removed.

SECTION 2. REPEAL. Article III, consisting of sections 71 through 84 of the Constitution of the State of North Dakota, is hereby repealed.

SECTION 3. EFFECTIVE DATE. The provisions of this resolution, if approved by the people, shall take effect on July 1, 1981. The legislative assembly shall provide by law for continuity in the transition from the system of executive government

in operation prior to adoption of this article to that prescribed by this article in a way which will assure orderliness and an effective program of executive organization under the terms of this article.

Disapproved November 4, 1980

94,166 to 153,927

NOTE: This was measure No. 4 on the general election ballot.